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Acella 
1. How much data does the City and County have to be migrated over? Where is the data currently located? In what system/format is the 
data currently? 
The COB has a Microsoft SQL Database with over 1.3GB of data, containing 93,000 electronic attachments in various formats, including 
but not limited to doc(x), xls(x), txt, pdf, and xml.  The data is located on-premise and synced to the cloud. 
 
2. If we cannot provide source code are we excluded from the bid process? 
No, the source code is not a minimum qualification, and will not exclude vendors from the bid process.  However, it will be contingency 
before contract award for the selected Proposer.  The City expects intellectual property ownership of any customization designed specifically 
for BOS under the contract, and for a perpetually free license to be provided. 
 
3. “The system can allow users to select a set of items as a dynamic search result, and individually selected set of items or a combination of 
the two.” Can you elaborate on this technical expectation? 
The technical expectation of Attachment VI, 1.5.3 is to allow users to initiate a query and return a result, which can be refined or filtered as 
the query is modified.  There are currently two separate search functions, one in the actual client application and one in the web application 
 
4. “The system can import code sections with Section, Section Name and Description and items may be associated with one or more.” Does 
this refer to Ordinances only, or how agendas are set up? 
Attachment VI, 1.10.9 refers to legislative file management and workflow control.   The system should have the ability to import and link to 
a publishing authority’s municipal and administrative codes for legal citations and reference.  
 
5. “The system, through messaging or otherwise, can prevent race conditions in statuses or states of items, including files (legislative items), 
minutes, agendas, etc.” Please clarify/define “race conditions.” 
Regarding Attachment VI, 2.3.3, a race condition is where an operation (i.e. modifying/preparing files, minutes, agenda) conducted 
simultaneously by multiple users results in an error due to an improper sequence of actions.  
 
6. “The system complies with all applicable City mandated security protocols and standards.” Can the City provide a list of protocols? 
The City’s Department of Technology adopts a framework consistent with the National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST) 
Security Framework to manage security for our critical infrastructure.  The City’s Committee on Information Technology (COIT) also 
adopts the California Counties Information Services Directors Association (CCISDA) best policies for Countywide Information Security 
Program Framework as a starting point and initial reference for the City’s security policies.  Additional department-level security protocols 
and standards may be implemented in accordance with Citywide directives. 
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DataNet Systems 
1. Would it be possible to split the functional and technical requirements into two parts as Mandatory and optional requirements? This would 
help the project to stay within the budget and schedule. 
The Technical and Functional Expectations contained in Attachment VI will not be split into two parts.   All expectations are deemed 
essential.  These are not minimum qualifications, so proposers will not be disqualified based on their inability to meet all expectations, but 
are expected to prioritize accordingly and present their best overall value of program services with a proposed budget and schedule. 
 
2. RFP states that the current LMS contract expires on August 2018. Can this be extended? 
No, the current contract cannot be extended. 
 
3. It would be difficult to develop/customize the system, complete entire data migration from old system and also perform User Acceptance 
Testing (UAT) by July, 2018. Can this be extended? Extending by one year would be ideal. 
Proposers should expect to have a contract effective date of no later than July 2018 to commence work.  A schedule and timeline for 
migration and implementation shall be presented by the Proposer as part of their Project Approach documentation (See Proposal Template - 
Attachment V, Section E) for evaluation.  The selected Proposer’s scope of work may be modified through contract negotiations, provided 
that all modifications are within the scope of services sought by this RFP. 
 
4. Are the budget and the maintenance costs negotiable? 
No, the not-to-exceed budget of $390,000 for implementation and $30,000 maintenance cost is not negotiable.  Proposers should present 
their best overall value proposal. 
 
5. Can you provide details about the current application architecture and the technologies used? 
The COB currently uses Microsoft SQL 20089 R2 and Crystal Reports. 
 
6. Can the new LMS be on cloud or do you prefer on-premises? 
The new LMS may be presented either as a cloud solution, on-premise solution, or combination of both.  If a cloud solution is proposed, a 
regularly-scheduled on-premise backup will be necessary for production and emergencies.   
 
7. Do you have all the existing data at a single source? Are there any other sources like mdb, excel or a different database? 
Yes, existing LMS data is at a single source.  We do not have other databases. 
 
8. What is the size of your database? How many tables, functions, and stored procedures do you have? 
The COB has a Microsoft SQL Database with over 1.3GB, containing 93,000 electronic attachments in various formats, including but not 
limited to doc(x), xls(x), txt, pdf, and xml.  The data is located on-premise and synced to the cloud.  We are not able to confirm the number 
of tables, functions, and stored procedures that we have. 
 
9. Would you be able to provide the DB schema in order to estimate better?  
No, the COB is not able to provide a database schema. 
 
10. What is the maximum load on the system so far? How many concurrent users are currently using and expected to use the system? 
Internally, the maximum load is approximately 50 users.  Externally, the maximum load is uncertain, but we are getting approximately 1,400 
unique visitors per day via website.  We expect the maximum load to double with the integration of legislative submission due to department 
users who submit legislation, and anticipate the number of external visitors to double as well due to backfile integration and better search 
functionality.  
 
 

Ref # Requirement Question 

1.4 The existing Legislative Agenda Management System utilized by the COB, has 
been in use since 1998. It is an on-premise software system, with significant 
amounts of customization done to meet specific procedural requirements and 
incorporate historical formatting requirements. The Agenda Management 
System software in use has been through upgrades and continued 
customizations to meet evolving needs and requirements, but there is a desire 
to 6 utilize and provide functionality, accessibility and technical options – to both 
staff and public - that are only available through up to date installation of a 
comprehensive Legislative Management system. 

The current system has been in place since 1998 and has 
went through several changes. One of the requirement 
is to migrate all the data from current system to new 
system. This is a complex effort considering the amount 
of changes it went through and the difference in 
database structure between the existing system and the 
new system. Can the data migration be estimated after 
studying the current system for better estimation and 
scheduling? 
 
The COB has a Microsoft SQL Database with over 1.3GB 
of data, containing 93,000 electronic attachments in 
various formats, including but not limited to doc(x), 
xls(x), txt, pdf, and xml.  The data is located on-premise 



Legislative Management System 
RFP #BOS2017-01 
 

and synced to the cloud.  Proposers are expected to 
detail a schedule and implementation plan as part of 
their Project Approach documentation (See Proposal 
Template - Attachment V, Section E) for evaluation.  
 

1.5 Generate a variety of reports relating to the status of legislative matters, Board 
member attendance and votes at various meetings, and pre-set and ad hoc 
queries. 

Can you provide more details on ad hoc queries with an 
example if possible? 
Ad hoc queries should allow a user to generate custom 
reports for research and drill down using multiple 
criteria.  For example, provide a user with the ability to 
generate a report filtered by sponsorship (primary or 
secondary), status, legislative body, action dates, 
keyword, etc. with customized output fields. 
 

1.5 Improve fault tolerance and disaster recovery speeds. What is currently present and what is the expectation? 
COB’s expectation is to have a copy of the application 
and database on separate device(s) for disaster 
recovery.   
 

1.5 Enable better automated data transfer through APIs, XML, etc. Where will the data be transferred from and to? 
The data will be transferred from either our servers or 
the cloud, depending on the proposed solution, and may 
be used by third parties for integration and research.  
 

1.5 Integrate the entire legislative history into a document repository Can you provide more details about this integration? 
Proposers should either include a document repository 
feature as part of their solution, or include a third-party 
document repository to package as a comprehensive 
solution.  Proposers should provide a plan to migrate 
data from our current system to the new system. 
 

2.1.2 The system has web-enabled components of the application that meet the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 Section 503, World Wide Web Consortium (W3C) and 
industry standards for graphics and design; speed; reliability; and security for 
dynamic content and user interaction. 
 

Please select the applicable options 
1. Section 508 
2. WCAG 2.0 A 
3. WCAG 2.0 AA 
4. WCAG 2.0 AAA 

Are you interested in obtaining an Accessibility 
Statement or a VPAT? 
At a minimum, the COB would need Section 508 ADA 
compliance.  Yes, we would be interested in obtaining an 
Accessibility Statement or Voluntary Product 
Accessibility Template (VPAT).  
 

3.2.3 All vendors must also be able to provide technical support during CCSF working 
hours, Monday through Friday from 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. Pacific Standard 
Time, have an after-hours call center number, and a Service Level Agreement 
specifying appropriate response times that CCSF can agree to for different levels 
of problems including penalties if target times are missed. 

Can we provide technical support from 7:00am to 
3:00pm PT and provide after-hours support after 3:00pm 
PT? 
The vendor must be able to provide technical support 
during working hours from 7:00am to 6:00pm PT.   
Technical support staff should be reachable during these 
stated working hours to provide a consistent level of 
support where a subject matter expert can be reached.   

 

Ref # Requirement Question 

 1.10.12 The system allows the source and password from Microsoft Active Directory to 
be the source for Authorizations and Passwords for the system. 

Will there be a need for non-AD authentication? 
Yes, the COB would need non-AD authentication for 
users of the public-facing web component. 

1.10.9 The system can import code sections with Section, Section Name and 
Description and items may be associated with one or more. 

Please clarify 
Attachment VI, 1.10.9 refers to legislative file 
management and workflow control.   The system should 
have the ability to import and link to a publishing 
authority’s municipal and administrative codes for legal 
citations and reference.  
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Propylon 
Question # RFP 

Page 
RFP Section RFP Text Propylon Question/Clarification Answer 

1 5 1.3 ‘The COB 
processes over 
1,400 legislative 
files / items on 
average annually’ 

Do these include  meeting notices, 
minutes etc. or is this specifically 
Ordinances, Resolutions and Motions? 

The count includes Ordinances, Resolutions, 
Motions, and Communications “C” Pages 
which are assigned a file number.   

Meeting notices, such as agendas and minutes, 
or reports are not included in the figure.  
Information on agenda and minutes can be 
found here: 
https://sfgov.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx     

2 6 1.5 ‘Allow complete 
and seamless 
conversion of 
existing data 
from the current 
system’ 

What is the scope of this conversion?  

- Estimated size of legacy data 

- Format of this data 

- What will this data be used for in 
the new system?  

The COB has a Microsoft SQL Database with 
over 1.3GB of data, containing 93,000 
electronic attachments in various formats, 
including but not limited to doc(x), xls(x), txt, 
pdf, and xml.  The data is located on-premise 
and synced to the cloud.  This data is required 
for retention and research.   

3 6 1.5 ‘produce a 
‘Legislation 
Introduced’ 
report..’ 

Does the system currently produce this 
report? 

Yes, the current system produces a Legislation 
Introduced report.   

Sample of the Legislation Introduced reports 
are available on the San Francisco Board of 
Supervisors’ public website here: 
http://sfbos.org/legislation-introduced.    

The Legislation Introduced Report File 
Numbers must link to the associated file in the 
LMS. 

4 6 1.5 ‘legislation 
drafting and 
collaboration’ 

Does the current system support 
collaborative drafting of ordinances?  

If so what drafting tool and version is 
used? 

Does it contain any custom macros and 
if so how many? 

No, the current system does not support 
collaborative drafting of ordinances.  

5 6 1.5 ‘e-signature’ This is a very general requirement and 
could be interpreted in a variety of ways 
– can you be more specific as to what 
you would consider an ‘e-signature’? 

Attachment VI, 2.2.8.   

Electronic signature is defined as an electronic 
sound, symbol, or process, attached to or 
logically associated with a record and executed 
or adopted by a person with the intent to sign 
the record.  An electronic signature must be 
attributable (or traceable) to a person who has 
the intent to sign the record with the use of 
adequate security and authentication measures 
that are contained in the method of capturing 
the electronic transaction (e.g., use of personal 
identification number or personal log-in 
identification username and password), and the 
recipient of the transaction must be able to 
permanently retain an electronic record of the 
transaction at the time of receipt. 

The City’s Department of Technology 
implemented the Citywide use of DocuSign for 
electronic signatures.  The Proposer’s LMS 
should have the capability or functionality to 
potentially integrate with DocuSign for 
workflow and approval of legislation.  
Alternatively, if a different electronic signature 
solution is proposed in response to this RFP, it 
should meet or exceed the security, capability, 
and functionality of the current solution.  

https://sfgov.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx
http://sfbos.org/legislation-introduced
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Question # RFP 
Page 

RFP Section RFP Text Propylon Question/Clarification Answer 

6 11 3.3 ‘shall provide the 
BOS with a 
machine-readable 
copy of all source 
code, build and 
support files 
under their 
control’ 

‘…and for a 
perpetually free 
license to be 
provided’ 

Are the BOS looking for an on-premise 
solution or a Software As A Service 
(SAAS) offering? 

The new LMS may be presented either as a 
cloud solution, on-premise solution, or 
combination of both.  If a cloud solution is 
proposed, a regularly-scheduled on-premise 
backup will be necessary for production and 
emergencies.   

 

7   General Are all Draft Ordinances, Resolutions 
and Motions received in a consistent 
format and template or does the format 
(document type, version of word etc.) 
vary based on the City Department it is 
received from. 

Are all drafts received in electronic 
form? 

There is a template Word format for draft 
Ordinances, Resolutions, and Motions.  
However, secondary review by COB 
legislative staff is often required to validate as 
users may use various versions of the template.   
All drafts are received in Word format, and an 
electronic draft is required and submitted by 
City Departments to the COB legislative staff 
via email.   

 

8   General Is there a shared drafting tool between 
all departments with custom macros? 

No, there is no shared legislative drafting or 
submission tool currently being used.  

9  Attachment 
VIII 

General Is it mandatory for departments 
submitting Motions etc. that they are 
drafted using a specific electronic 
template (word file) or just that they 
follow the formatting instructions in the 
templates(as per samples provided) and 
they can be drafted in any word 
processing tool of their choice? 

A blank Word template is provided to 
departments submitting Motions, and it is 
required that they use a prescribed template.  
However, secondary review by COB 
legislative staff is often required to validate.    

Departments may use various Word processing 
tools to create a version that is similar, but not 
exactly the prescribed template. The 
inconsistent formatting caused by using other 
tools often requires staff to reformat and 
validate to conform to our standards.  We wish 
to remove variation, if possible. 

10    In what format(s) are proposed 
amendments received? 

Proposed amendments are received in Word 
format.   

11    Are proposed amendments reviewed in 
context in the original document? 

Proposed amendments are reviewed against the 
context of the previous version.  Changes may 
be harder to identify between versions, such as 
with Resolutions since clean copies may be the 
only submission, and a simplification to the 
change identification process would be 
desirable. 

12    How are amendments associated with 
draft Ordinances, Resolutions and 
Motions? 

Ordinance amendments are tracked throughout 
the legislative process and noted in two types 
of underline and strike-through text, Times 
New Roman for original and substitute 
revisions, and in Arial for those made in 
meetings. 

Resolution and Motion amendments are not 
currently tracked in the draft legislation.  
Notations for changes are noted in the Minutes 
of each meeting and can only be verified 
through line-by-line manual comparison. 
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Question # RFP 
Page 

RFP Section RFP Text Propylon Question/Clarification Answer 

13 23 Attachment IX 4) Save as a new 
attachment and 
version to 
Legistar 
(Legislative 
Research Center). 

Can you expand on the process of 
retrieving and saving versions from 
Legistar – 

- When ‘saving a version to 
Legistar’ are there any details 
being captured via an electronic 
form ? 

- If so what are they? 

New versions of legislation are attached from 
the user’s computer folder.  The current LMS 
only allows edits to a draft document and 
saving into the same version, but does not have 
the capability of saving it as a new version. 

All edits made to draft legislation opened in the 
current LMS are resaved and over-write what 
was previously attached.   

14 23 Attachment IX Clerk shall 
update the hard 
legislative file. 

What is the ’hard legislative file’? “Hard legislative file” refers to the original 
paper copies of the legislative file.  

15   Submissions Are all draft submissions sent via email 
to  BOS.Legislation@sfgov.org or can 
submissions be made in hard copy / 
other methods? 

All submissions are required via email (or any 
electronic form) and hard-copy, but they must 
be submitted in both forms.  Most electronic 
submissions are submitted to 
BOS.Legislation@sfgov.org, but may come in 
through other staff emails. 

16    For the production of the final minutes, 
the workflow indicates ‘Scan Final 
Minutes’ – is it the case that the COB 
operations division scan and OCR a 
printed version of the minutes before 
handing over to IT for page numbering? 

The COB’s Legislative Division PDFs and 
prints a hard-copy Final Version of the Minutes 
and hands it over to the Operations Division 
for processing.  The final scanning and posting 
of the Final Minutes is handled by Operations 
and IT. 

17   Scanning Can you outline at what stage of the 
legislative process and for what types of 
legislative documents scanning is 
required. 

File attachments are scanned and attached to 
the current LMS when they are not received in 
electronic form from a department.  Meeting 
packet materials for each committee and Board 
meeting are scanned and attached in the LMS. 

18   Scanning Are all scanned files converted into text 
files via OCR?  

On average what would the volume of 
scanning be per legislative day? 

File attachments are not always run through 
Optical Character Recognition (OCR), so it 
would be highly desirable to have the OCR 
process automated.  All meeting packet 
materials however, are OCRd through Adobe 
Acrobat before being attached in the current 
LMS. 

The volume of scanning varies dramatically, 
with the heaviest usage days being Thursdays 
and Fridays.  Meeting packet materials may be 
more than 20,000 pages at times.  On average, 
we estimate over 5,000 pages attached every 
day. 

19   Scanning What hardware do you currently use for 
scanning? 

Ricoh 7200 MFP all-in-one copiers/scanners 
are used for scanning.  

 

mailto:BOS.Legislation@sfgov.org
mailto:BOS.Legislation@sfgov.org
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Question # RFP 
Page 

RFP Section RFP Text Propylon Question/Clarification Answer 

20    For the production of the Final Minutes 
workflow it indicates that the IT unit 
‘Add volume and page number / 
Regenerate Final Minutes with Volume 
and Page Numbers’ – can you expand 
on this and provide some context?  

- Do the draft minutes not contain 
page and volume numbers? 

- Are they regenerating the final 
minutes in a different publishing 
application? 

- If so what are they using to create 
the final minutes as opposed to the 
draft minutes? 

The draft minutes do not contain volume 
number, meeting number, or the continuous 
page numbers.  Final approved minutes are 
issued a volume and meeting number, 
paginated continuously, and the page numbers 
reset at the beginning of each calendar year.   
Volume and page numbers are not regenerated 
through a different publishing application.  

21 2 Attachment VI 
- 1.1.2 Public 
Participation 

‘create reports 
and portal 
widgets based on 
search criteria’ 

Can you give an example of a typical 
report you would expect a member of 
the public to be able to create from the 
public portal? 

Can you give an example of a ‘portal 
widget’? 

An example of a public inquiry report would 
be a compilation of all legislation pertaining to 
a specific topic (e.g., bus routes) that was 
introduced during a specific time period (e.g., 
2010-2016).  Examples of portal widgets 
would be sidebar recommendations pertinent to 
a user’s search criteria (e.g. transportation 
issues), a display of recently approved 
legislation, and customized display of saved 
searches.  

 

22 2 Attachment VI 
- 1.1 .5 Public 
Participation 

‘The system’s 
public web 
interface 
accommodates 
display of 
different 
languages and 
characters and 
automated 
translation’ 

What are the languages required? 

Is this restricted to the display of just 
the website interface controls (menus, 
navigation, buttons, etc.) or is ‘automate 
translation’ also required for the display 
of all legislative content (agendas, 
minutes, drafts, etc.)? 

Per the San Francisco Language Access 
Ordinance, languages to be supported are: 
Chinese (Cantonese and Mandarin), Spanish, 
and Filipino.  

The display of different languages per 
Attachment VI, 1.1.5, refers to both website 
interface controls as well as the display of 
legislative content and documents. 

23 3 Attachment VI 
– 1.2 .2 
Legislative 
Item 
Management 

‘..an easy way to 
identify changes 
to the text and the 
author of the 
changes’ 

Does this specifically refer to manual 
change tracking as set out in the drafting 
rules in Legislative Process Handbook 
(i.e. single / double underline for 
additions, single / double strikethrough 
for deletions) or does this refer to a 
machine automated process of 
identifying changes in any version of a 
document? 

Attachment VI, 1.2.2 refers to the automated 
process of identifying all changes to any 
version of each document attached in Legistar. 

24 3 Attachment VI 
– 1.2 .6 
Legislative 
Item 
Management 

‘The system can 
handle large page 
dimensions, for 
example 
blueprints’ 

Does this refer solely to electronic 
versions of these files or the ability to 
scan / OCR large format hard copies? 

Attachment VI, 1.2.6 refers to both the ability 
to handled large electronic files and the ability 
to scan and OCR large formats. 
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Question # RFP 
Page 

RFP Section RFP Text Propylon Question/Clarification Answer 

25 3 Attachment VI 
– 1.2 .7 
Legislative 
Item 
Management 

‘associating a file 
with a geographic 
point or a 
geographic area’ 

What are your expectations with regard 
geo-tagging legislative items? 

- Based on ZIP code 

- Based on free form text address 

- Based on text analysis of the 
document 

- Based on GPS co-ordinates 

Geographical data contained in our current and 
historical legislative files may include zip 
code, free form text address, geographic 
information within the document, and/or GPS 
coordinates.  Proposers may propose as part of 
their project plan their best recommendation 
for a geotagging solution.   

The priorities are searchability, backfile 
integration, and flexibility to accommodate 
future technological changes.   

          

26 4 Attachment VI 
– 1.4.4 Agenda 
and Minutes 
Management 

‘modify 
automatically-
generated 
agendas, giving 
the users total 
discretion…’ 

Does this refer to the ability for users to 
directly edit a published agenda 
document and have those changes be 
reflected in the system if a subsequent 
agenda was to be automatically 
generated from the system? 

Yes, Attachment VI, 1.4.4 refers to the ability 
for subsequent automatically generated 
Agendas and Minutes to accommodate manual 
modifications made by a user. 

27 5  Attachment VI 
– 1.5.6 Agenda 
and Minutes 
Management 

‘export items in 
common formats’ 

Can you be more specific as to what 
‘items’ are to be able to be exported into 
the sample formats given? This is a 
broad requirement and could be 
interpreted in a variety of ways. 

Attachment VI, 1.5.6 refers to the ability to 
export Agendas and Minutes into user friendly 
formats, such as a editable Word document.   

28 6 Attachment VI 
– 1.7.7 Agenda 
and Minutes 
Management 

‘tracking and 
management of 
applications to 
eligible bodies 
(boards, 
commissions, 
etc.) to capture 
the personal 
information of 
applicant to 
body.’ 

Is it a requirement of the system to 
manage the complete application 
process of members to boards? For 
example interview tracking, approval 
process etc. Can you expand on the 
functional requirements for creation / 
application processing / member 
assignment. 

Yes, in regards to Attachment VI, 1.7.7, it is a 
requirement that an applicant’s entire 
appointment process be tracked.  An applicant 
should be able to submit an application and the 
application, along with any additional 
documents received throughout the process, 
could be tracked or associated to the hearing 
file, appointment motion, and the period during 
which they serve. 

29 8 Attachment VI 
– 1.9.9 
Submission 
Interface 

‘The comparison 
can show version 
control of the 
document on 
pleading paper 
with “redline” 
that contains line-
by-line 
numbering 

Can you provide an example of a 
pleading paper with redline and line by 
line numbering? 

In the current system when making 
amendments is the redline added to the 
document automatically (when typing 
via a macro) or specified as a text style 
by the user?  

If the latter are there custom macros 
developed in the drafting tool to apply 
custom styles? 

Redline paper with line by line number can be 
found applied to any of the approved 
legislation posted on the BOS website here: 
http://sfbos.org/legislation-passed.  

Currently, the system does not generate redline 
automatically and there are no macros.  Special 
physical redline paper with line-by-line 
numbering is required for legislation to be 
printed on.  A system generated redline is 
desirable for the legislative drafting tool.  

http://sfbos.org/legislation-passed
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Question # RFP 
Page 

RFP Section RFP Text Propylon Question/Clarification Answer 

30 9 Attachment VI 
– 1.10.3 
Agenda and 
Minutes 
Management 

‘The system can 
support multiple 
configurable 
calendars’ 

Can you expand on this calendaring 
requirement – i.e. does the system need 
to be able to publish a ‘visual interactive 
calendar’ (along the lines of Google 
Calendar) for each body?  

Yes, the system should be able to track 
multiple virtual calendars that can be manually 
configured if special meetings are held or 
changes to the date/time outside of the regular 
schedule are made. 

31 10 Attachment VI 
– 2.2.3 
Application 
Architecture 

‘Operates 
properly 
independent of 
device e.g. PC, 
MAC, Android, 
iPhone, iPad etc.’ 

Is it the expectation that complex 
functions (such as agenda packet 
creation and document upload) are to be 
possible via a smart phone? 

Does the requirement for operation on a 
smart phone specifically refer to the 
consumption of data? 

No, it is not an expectation for agenda packet 
creating and document uploads to be available 
via smart phone.   Attachment VI, 2.2.3, refers 
to the consumption of data on smart phones.   

32 11 Attachment VI 
– 2.2.5 
Application 
Architecture 

‘Supports 
multiple 
languages for 
input and 
automated 
translation’ 

Is there a defined list of languages the 
system needs to support? 

Does this refer to the text of all 
legislative documents? 

Does this refer to the interface of back 
office systems (such as agenda 
creation?) 

The scope of these language 
requirements could be quite broad, if 
possible can you provide more specific 
information of these requirements. 

Per the San Francisco Language Access 
Ordinance, languages to be supported are: 
Chinese (Cantonese and Mandarin), Spanish, 
and Filipino.  

 

Yes, the multiple languages refer to the public-
facing legislative documents.  

 

No, the multiple languages do not apply to 
back office systems.  

 

 

33 12 Attachment VI 
– 2.5.2 Data 
conversion and 
migration  

‘The system can 
retain all history 
of all legislative 
items at the field 
level and be 
searchable in the 
system just as 
newly created 
items are 
searchable’ 

What format is this data contained in?  

What database format contains the field 
mapping and data model information 
required to successfully fulfill this 
requirement? 

The data is contained in a Microsoft SQL 
Database, and we currently do not have access 
to the table relationship or the database 
mapping. 

34 12 Attachment VI 
– 2.5.3 Data 
conversion and 
migration 

‘The system can 
allow for 
searching through 
imported data in 
the same way it 
allows searching 
through new 
files’ 

How is this information (keywords, 
short titles, long titles, etc.) currently 
indexed (identified) ? 

We do not have access to the table relationship 
or the database mapping from the current 
vendor, so cannot verify how information is 
currently indexed. 
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35 13 Attachment VI 
– 2.6.2 
Security and 
Authentication 

‘The system 
complies with all 
applicable City 
and mandated 
security protocols 
and standards’ 

Can you point us in the direction of 
where these protocols and standards are 
listed? 

The City’s Department of Technology adopts a 
framework consistent with the National 
Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST) 
Security Framework to manage security for our 
critical infrastructure.  The City’s Committee 
on Information Technology (COIT) also adopts 
the California Counties Information Services 
Directors Association (CCISDA) best policies 
for Countywide Information Security Program 
Framework as a starting point and initial 
reference for the City’s security policies.  
Additional department-level security protocols 
and standards may be implemented in 
accordance with Citywide directives. 

36 13 Attachment VI 
– 2.7.2 System 
Capacity and 
Performance 

‘Even complex 
searches should 
complete in under 
five seconds’ 

In the example given of the advanced 
search fields does this refer to a search 
over the complete corpus including 
archived data? Or is this the response 
time requirement for a search over a 
current year’s legislative data? 

The example refers to searches in the new 
LMS to be completed within five seconds over 
the complete corpus, including archived data 
and all years. 

37   General Installation Window. Is there any period 
of time when the BOS is in recess? And 
if so for how long? 

Board recess generally occurs in August for 
summer recess, and December/January for 
winter recess.  The period is usually 3-4 weeks, 
but may be subject to change.   

For reference, the 2017 Board meeting schedule 
can be found here: http://sfbos.org/regularly-
scheduled-board-meetings  

38   Municipal Code Is it a requirement of the system that the 
drafting tool is integrated with the 
municipal code and that it tracks 
changes to the code? 

How do you currently codify the 
municipal code? 

Municipal Code changes are codified through 
the City Attorney’s office via an outside vendor 
that manually makes changes to the code. This 
line item does not refer to the integration of 
changes from the drafting tool to the official 
code. Official Municipal Code is published on 
amlegal.com  

This only refers to the association of Municipal 
Code sections to specific files or types of 
matters. 

39   Budget / Scope The RFP states that it is ‘not a complete 
listing of all the services that may be 
required or desired’, and at the same 
time does contain a large amount of 
requirements for a full LMS system 
including publishing, board 
management and associated application 
processes, etc., all within a budget of 
$390,000. 

Is it the intention that a response to this 
RFP needs to be tailored to fit within 
this budget or to state the budget to 
meet all the requirements contained 
within this RFP? 

It is the intention for responses to this RFP meet 
all requirements contained within this RFP.    

However, the system should be sufficiently 
flexible in functional and technical design to 
accommodate future technological changes and 
any re-engineering of the business environment. 

 

http://sfbos.org/regularly-scheduled-board-meetings
http://sfbos.org/regularly-scheduled-board-meetings

